
                                  

AGENDA
For a meeting of the

CULTURE AND TOURISM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
to be held on

THURSDAY, 18 JANUARY 2018
at

7.00 PM
in

WITHAM ROOM - COUNCIL OFFICES, ST. PETER'S HILL, 
GRANTHAM. NG31 6PZ

Aidan Rave, Chief Executive    

Chairman
Councillor Linda Wootten

Councillor Stephen Benn (Vice-
Chairman)
Councillor Katherine Brown
Councillor Tracey Forman

Councillor Mrs Judy Smith
Councillor Judy Stevens
Councillor Mrs Sarah Stokes

Invited Cabinet Members
Councillor Matthew Lee, The Leader, Cabinet Member for HR and Cultural Services
Councillor Nick Robins, Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy

Support Officer: Anita Eckersley Tel: 01476 406 517
E-mail: a.eckersley@southkesteven.gov.uk

Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider 
the items of business listed below.

1  COMMENTS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s 
discretion.

2  MEMBERSHIP 

The Committee to be notified of any substitute members.

3  APOLOGIES 

4  DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at 
the meeting.

mailto:a.eckersley@southkesteven.gov.uk


5  ACTION NOTES FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 16 NOVEMBER 2017 
(Pages 3 - 9)

(Enclosure)

6  UPDATES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

 Update on the planning for a Visitor Economy Workshop

7  A VERBAL UPDATE ON CHRISTMAS EVENTS 

8  VISION FOR THE VISITOR ECONOMY 

A presentation from Andrew Norman, Head of Visitor Economy InvestSK.

9  RAF 100 COMMEMORATION PROGRAMME (Pages 10 - 18)

Report VE001 of the Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy
(Enclosure)

10  WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 19 - 22)

(Enclosure)

11  ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASON OF 
SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES DECIDES IS URGENT 



MEETING OF THE
CULTURE AND TOURISM 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

THURSDAY, 16 NOVEMBER 2017 7.00 PM

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT

Councillor Judy Stevens
Councillor Mrs Sarah Stokes

Councillor Linda Wootten (Chairman)
Councillor Ray Wootten

CABINET MEMBERS

Councillor Matthew Lee, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for HR and 
Cultural Services 
Councillor Nick Robins, Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy

OFFICERS

Strategic Director Growth and Development (Steve Ingram)
Assistant Chief Executive (Lee Sirdifield)
Assistant Director Growth and Development (Paul Thomas)
Team Leader Cultural Services (Graham Burley)
Service Manager Venues and Town Centre Management (Paul Stokes)

24. MEMBERSHIP

The Committee were notified that Councillor Ray Wootten was substituting for 
Councillor Judy Smith.

25. APOLOGIES

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Stephen Benn.

26. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

None disclosed.

Page - 3

Agenda Item 5



27. ACTION NOTES FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 14TH SEPTEMBER 2017

Action notes from the meeting held on 14th September 2017 were agreed as a 
correct record and their content noted.

28. UPDATES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING

Thanks were given to the Service Manager Venues and Town Centre 
Management for having the foliage cut back on the Welcome to Grantham sign 
on the Barrowby Road. It was enquired whether signs could be replaced on 
Manthorpe Road as they seemed to have been removed. The Leader of the 
Council replied that there was a proposal in the budget, if approved, for 
additional new signage and replacements. Signage was within the portfolio for 
the Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy, a signage strategy was 
planned although it was noted that there was limited resources so work would 
need to be prioritized.

The Chairman informed the Committee of various events that she had attended 
including the St Wulfram’s sacred space common ground project launch which 
would be very beneficial to the town and the heritage in the St Wulfram’s area. 
The Hindu Festival of Lights and Celebrate the Nation at the Jubilee Life 
Church in Grantham. There had been a very successful Halloween event at 
Wyndham Park in Grantham which had been attended by 4,500 people. A 
further Christmas event was planned on 10th December 2017 at the park. The 
turning on of the Christmas lights would take place on 26th November in both 
Grantham and Stamford.

The Leader of the Council referred to the St Wulfram’s sacred space common 
ground project which he had also attended and which showed the potential 
benefits that heritage brings. The church was an important part of any heritage 
initiative in the centre of Grantham. He referred to the Councillor Briefing that 
was taking place on Monday (20th November 2017) at which Members would 
receive an introduction to InvestSK. The economic growth of an area was not 
just about building houses and infrastructure, the economy also relied on 
culture and heritage making places a great place to be and live. The Leader 
also commented on the importance of green spaces stating that Wyndham 
Park in Grantham was an amazing park and he had put forward a budget 
proposal for additional spend in this area.

A Member from Deepings referred to the Garden Pumpkin competition that had 
recently been held in the Deepings and had been a great success. The 
success of the competition had led to a growth in the trade of the garden 
nursery. A family run café had also benefitted from marketing associated with 
the competition. 

Page - 4



29. HISTORIC ENGLAND

Members received a presentation from Paul Bodenham who was the Local 
Engagement Advisor for the East Midlands for Historic England, a public body 
that championed and protected England’s historic places, they were also a 
statutory consultee for planning applications.  

The presentation focused on heritage within South Kesteven under the 
following headings:

- Why did we care about heritage
- How did we care about heritage
- How we could exploit the benefits of heritage

There were a large number of historic places within South Kesteven. Historic 
England worked with owners offering their expertise to look after them and help 
then to continue to survive. What people cared about within their area made the 
place, gave a sense of attraction and worth, a sense that they belonged. There 
were over 2,000 designated assets on the register within South Kesteven 
including parks and gardens as well as a number of Grade I and Grade II listed 
buildings. The landscapes within South Kesteven were very distinctive, some 
areas had a similar feel to the Cotswolds and areas such as Stamford had a 
more cosmopolitan culture. 
  
A diagram was circulated to Members which showed the value and impact of 
heritage and the historic environment. The components listed within the 
diagram covered:

- Tourism which South Kesteven had a distinctive offer to exploit
- Education Skills
- Sense of Place
- Personal development
- Environmental life
- Quality Life 
- Regeneration Development 

Each component contributed to an area’s sense of belonging, pride, quality, 
vibrancy and a sense of place, these heritage values translated to economic 
and social values.
  
Within the East Midlands, heritage directly contributed to Gross Value Added by 
£715m in 2015, this was a significant figure with heritage tourism accounting for 
2% of the GDP and was increasing as more people visited heritage properties. 
Evidence suggested that people were attracted to living within conservation 
areas and willing to pay the extra price to do so with one in four businesses 
stating that the historic environment was an important deciding factor in where 
they were located.  

Page - 5



Investing in the historic environment brought more visitors to local areas and 
encouraged them to spend more. Cultural industries were 29% more likely to 
be found in a listed than a non-listed building which enabled strategies to be 
put in place to help regenerate towns. A strategy that helped to yield benefits 
such as negotiating good constructive conservation to maintain heritage for the 
public benefit was vital and this could be seen in Stamford, which was the first 
conservation area.

For an area like Grantham a townscape assessment was desirable to 
understand the environment of the town, what the town had, how it was valued 
and how it would be cared for and enable the public to enjoy the benefits. 
Historic records could help to underpin the understanding of “place” and how it 
evolved over time. Heritage festivals and heritage school programmes like 
those recently held in Stamford helped to encourage the younger generation to 
participate.

Risks to heritage were then discussed. The Heritage at Risk register contained 
buildings, gardens, places of worship, archaeology and conservation areas. A 
benefit of including something on the register enabled funding to be provided to 
restore what had been lost. Reference was made to the shop front scheme that 
had been carried out in Grantham and the work that was undertaken by 
Heritage Lincolnshire including projects on Lincoln Cathedral and Lincoln 
Castle.

The presentation concluded on how the benefits of South Kesteven could be 
exploited and what a Cultural Strategy may address such as having a 
distinctive identity, one unique to South Kesteven, how to encourage people to 
gain access to information, valuing priorities and how the stewardship of these 
would be addressed in the future. Partnership working played a large part and 
Neighbourhood Planning was also highlighted and how this could include 
heritage engaging people at a local level.

The Chairman thanked Mr Bodenham for his interesting presentation.  

Members discussed what had been said giving examples from their own 
experiences. 

The Leader was passionate about heritage and culture and he was pleased to 
hear what had been said in the presentation of how heritage could be used, 
from April there would be a new focus not just on Grantham and Stamford but 
the whole district. He suggested that a letter from the Committee on how issues 
on culture, tourism and the arts could be addressed in the budget would be 
welcome. There were all sorts of ways in which the district assets could be 
used and our ability to market them. Partnership working was a massive 
agenda and a broader view of the whole district was needed, working with 
organisations such as the Heritage Lottery Fund, Heritage Lincolnshire and 
Historic England. 

Page - 6



The Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy spoke of the Shop Front 
Scheme and how this had showcased what could be done. Reference was 
made to other towns in the district and how they could be helped to have such 
a scheme. It was stated that an avenue to explore would be the Heritage 
Lottery Fund. Mention was made of Bourne which had some beautiful historic 
buildings, but the proximity of the traffic was an issue. 

Mention was made of the Civic Societies that each town had and how these 
could be used to re-invigorate and re-ignite interest in heritage as a way 
forward for the district.

Mr Bodenham stated that there were things that the authority could do to use 
as a catalyst which were cost effective.

Once again the Chairman thanked Mr Bodenham for attending the meeting and 
for the work he was already doing with officers.

In concluding the discussion the Leader stated that following the comments that 
had been made on a proposed way forward, a letter from the Committee asking 
for money to be made available to be used as a catalyst to help with this would 
be helpful and he would be happy to bring forward a proposal to start this.

30. CULTURAL STRATEGY

Members had been circulated with report SLP013 which concerned updates 
and outcomes following the two workshops that had been held to help develop 
the Council’s new Cultural Strategy. Discussions through the workshops had 
provided a clear set of overarching aims and also a number of strands, the four 
main strands being:

- Heritage
- The Arts
- Sports 
- The Sciences

A number of cross cutting themes were also identified where the Council could 
potentially add value to activities within local communities and support 
improvement in the cultural offer. It was recognised that engagement may only 
occur with those organisations that were already known to the Council 
however, the recommendation contained within the report asked for the 
Committees support for the outcomes following the workshops and also 
recommended to Cabinet that an expert resource was commissioned to help 
development the Cultural Strategy and provide guidance.  

The inclusion of “The Sciences” within the main strands was questioned 
together with including tourism within the Cultural strategy. It was commented 
that the district had a large science heritage due to Sir Isaac Newton and this 

Page - 7



should be celebrated both past and present. Tourism was seen as an essential 
element to growth and therefore should be looked at separately to culture 
which was more heritage and arts based. Further discussion took place on 
innovation and advances in technology currently being used within the district 
at an agriculture level which contributed to “The Sciences” strand and how the 
Council could support organisations and build on the “The Sciences” 
connections to highlight its heritage making it an attractive place to live. We 
needed to focus on what we were proud of in the past and how this could be 
focussed on for the future. A slight amendment to the proposed 
recommendation was suggested to include additional internal resources which 
Members were happy to include.

Recommendation:

That the Cultural and Tourism Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
supports the outcomes from the two workshops and recommends to 
Cabinet that an expert resource is commissioned, together with additional 
internal resources, to help develop the Cultural Strategy and provide the 
necessary strategic guidance to the Council’s cultural activities.

31. VISITOR ECONOMY STRATEGY

The Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy submitted report SLP014 
which gave the context for, and the process by which, the Council’s new Visitor 
Economy Strategy would be informed and developed. It was proposed to hold 
interactive workshop sessions similar to those held in connection with the 
Cultural Strategy with both Members and external organisations and 
stakeholders to help inform and develop the strategy.

Members were in agreement with the proposed way forward. It was hoped that 
a workshop could be arranged before the end of the calendar year.

Recommendation:

That workshops be arranged for the Culture and Tourism Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to inform the development of a Visitor Economy 
Strategy.

32. LOCATION OF MEETINGS

The issue had been raised by Councillor Ashley Baxter who had requested that 
council meetings be held around the district during the municipal year. The 
issue had been raised at the Communities PDG in 2016 at which it had been 
voted against. Since the agenda for the meeting had been circulated the 
Member had submitted a motion concerning the issued which would be 
debated at Council on 23rd November.

Page - 8



The motion stated:

This Council pledges to hold at least one formal meeting (e.g. an 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting) in each of the 3 smaller 
towns (Stamford, Bourne and Market Deeping) during each calendar 
year.

The Chairman indicated that she had no problem in taking the Committee to an 
alternative venue in the district. The other Members present felt that it was up 
to the discretion of the Chairman if the meeting was held at a different location.

33. CLOSE OF MEETING

The meeting closed at 8:40pm.

The next meeting would be held on 18th January 2018.

Page - 9



Cultural and Tourism
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Report of: Councillor Nick Robins
Cabinet Member for  Retail and Visitor Economy

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Cultural and Tourism
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

18th January 2018

RAF100: Commemoration Programme (VE001)

Decision
Proposal:

Report for recommendation to endorse project.

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Nick Robins, 
Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy.

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication:

Debbie Nicholls
Communications Officer
d.nicholls@southkesteven.gov.uk 
01476 406494
Date: 10th December 2017

Andrew Norman
InvestSK Head of Visitor Economy
andrew@investsk.co.uk
01476 406412
Date: 22nd December 2017
 
Steve Ingram
Strategic Director 
s.ingram@southkesteven.gov.uk
01476 406007
Date: 4th January 2018

Councillor Nick Robins, 
Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy
Date: 4th January 2018

Page - 10

Agenda Item 9

mailto:p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:andrew@investsk.co.uk
mailto:s.ingram@southkesteven.gov.uk


SUMMARY

2018 marks the hundredth year since the formation of the Royal Air Force. 

The RAF is creating an ‘RAF100’ commemoration programme to celebrate this 
anniversary, with Lincolnshire specifically playing an active role as the historic ‘Bomber 
County’ and home of our modern air force. 
 
This report recommends that South Kesteven District Council draws up a programme of 
related events as befits a district with such a strong aviation heritage. Such a 
programme could also have longer-term benefits beyond 2018 in bringing aviation 
heritage to life within the District.

The report identifies potential partners, with some of which the Council already works, 
as well as new contacts that could be potentially valuable as it develops its tourism and 
heritage agendas.

It also highlights the potential benefits for accommodation providers by promoting 
themselves as the ‘gateway to Lincolnshire’ and benefit from local and county-wide 
RAF100 events.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Culture and Tourism Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommends 
development of the proposed programme to the applicable Cabinet Member.

1. BACKGROUND INFORMATION

1.1. Meetings to discuss RAF100 local opportunities commenced in September 
2017, organised by Lincoln Business Improvement Group (working with Visit 
Lincoln) and relevant stakeholders across the county. As a stakeholder, the 
Council is entitled to use the approved commemoration branding for 
Lincolnshire. 

1.2. Subsequent meetings have shared both the national RAF100 programme and a 
developing agenda of events within the county.

1.3. A county-level tourism conference was held in October at RAF Cranwell. The 
conference, which had RAF100 as its focus, had presentations from the RAF 
Museum at Hendon, The People’s Mosquito and Aviation Heritage Lincolnshire.

1.4. The Council has already created a brochure including its World War One 
(WW1), World War Two (WW11) and Cold War aviation heritage sites and a 
web site (heritageofflight.co.uk). Successful events have also been held, 
notably for the 70th anniversary of D-Day.

1.5. The Council has also worked with Stoke Rochford Hall to attract group travel 
operators to use the hotel as a base from which to visit county sites such as the 
International Bomber Command Centre in Lincoln. 

Page - 11



1.6. The Council is also exhibiting in partnership with other Lincolnshire 
organisations at the NEC in March 2018 at the British Travel and Trade Show.

1.7. The joint exhibition in 2017 took an aviation theme in its ‘Welcome to 
Lincolnshire’ stand. Partners were Visit Lincoln, International Bomber Command 
Centre, the Battle of Britain Memorial Fund and the Petwood Hotel in Woodhall 
Spa. The project resulted in a national travel award for innovation.

1.8. There is continued interest in aviation heritage and it is envisaged that planned 
events will prove popular to a wide audience.

2. PROVISIONAL SCHEDULE

2.1. The following are proposed as potential component parts of the district RAF100 
programme:

 RAF100 district launch; inviting visitor sites and accommodation providers, 
with RAF100 and programme-related speakers to an appropriate location – 
illustrating SKDC’s commitment to the visitor economy

 Guided tours of St Vincent’s Hall, Bomber Command HQ and Ops Centre 
for the 1943 Dambusters’ Raid (details to be agreed with Cllr Graham 
Jeal). These would commemorate RAF100 and the 75th anniversary of the 
raids.

 National Model Aircraft Championships at RAF Barkston Heath. The 
championships would have an RAF100 theme, flying vintage aircraft and 
allowing access to a special WWII memorial, which was created there in 
2014.

 We have agreement in principle to include an RAF100 theme at Harlaxton 
Manor - former base of the Royal Flying Corps (pre-RAF) - with exhibitions 
and talks along with the Manor’s Open Day on 29th July 2018.

 Associated musical event at St Wulfram’s Church in Grantham, with 
Cranwell Military Wives Choir, poetry and readings. An event could 
potentially run on the weekend of Harlaxton Open Day, e.g. Saturday 28th 
July 2018.

 RAF100 themed walks around North Witham/Caythorpe, among others.

 RAF100 ties with the Woodland Trust’s WWl woods project.

 Rippingale; boosting the village’s claim to be the real inspiration for The 
Archers radio series - first established post-WWII to encourage awareness 
of farming and food production. Possible WWII-focused food event.

 Better engagement with Aviation Heritage Lincolnshire’s ‘Bastion in the Air’ 
WWI project to explore possibilities. Travelling exhibitions are available 
free of charge.

Page - 12



 Captain Albert Ball VC DSO MC (WWI Flying Ace) attended The King's 
School in Grantham. The Council has been offered artefacts and 
information for an exhibition (working with Grantham Museum).

 Engagement with accommodation providers, such as the Urban Hotel 
(which already hosts aviation tours) and Stoke Rochford Hall, will help to 
define accommodation providers’ potential roles and benefits.

Once agreed, the above will be developed into a district-wide calendar of 
events, which will then feed in to the county offer for wider promotion. 

2.2. Promotional Route

All available PR resources within the Council, including SKDC web site(s), 
event posters, an information leaflet, press releases and social media will be 
utilised to promote the programme.

Key stakeholders will be invited to an event to raise awareness of the 
programme and encourage new ideas from visitor attractions and stakeholders, 
particularly accommodation providers to position themselves as the gateway to 
the county, with all county/Lincoln events accessible from South Kesteven.

2.3. Potential Market

The appeal of and interest in RAF100 is expected to be extremely wide, both 
geographically and demographically, from the very young to those who have 
fought or lived through the World Wars.

Interest in WWII remains extremely strong across the generations, helped by a 
series of annual events including marking the armistice, poppies and 
Remembrance Sunday.

Internationally, the Lincolnshire programme will potentially draw from many 
different nationalities as a result of the huge allied effort that came together on 
the ground and in the skies above the County.

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

3.1. The resources required to deliver the programme are available within the 
Council’s emerging tourism activities budget. 

3.2. Specific costings are envisaged as:

Launch Event  £   500
RAF100 Concert.  Paid / FOC (tbc) Bands. £   1,000
Engagement Event £   1,400
Advertising £   800
Display boards – Captain Albert Ball / generic RAF100 £   2,500
Information flier.  Design in-house.  Print £   1,000
RAF100 Micro site; this is to be produced internally

Total:  £   7,200

Page - 13



4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

4.1 No risks identified.

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

5.1 Elements of the programme will be available in alternative format on request. 
Through Aviation Heritage Lincolnshire we have, for example, identified specific 
Polish links through existing historic networks – all of which can be utilised to 
maximise involvement.

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

6.1. No specific issues arising.

7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

7.1. Any related expenditure will have to be found from existing budget provision.

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

8.1. Where budget provision is available, any procurement must be done in 
accordance with the relevant public procurement regulations and the Contract 
and Procurement Procedure Rules.

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES

9.1. The Council views this project as complementary to its HLF Wyndham Park 
WW1 programme, notably the ‘Dawn of a New Era’ event on Sunday 9 
September, commemorating the end of WW1 (and completion of works at the 
park) plus potentially other Wyndham Park events during the year.

10. APPENDICES

10.1. Appendix 1: RAF100 calendar of events; national and Lincolnshire calendar of 
events.

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Page - 14



________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
    

  19/12/2017  | Page 1  

RAF Centenary 2018 

Events 
 

 

The RAF 100 national calendar of events is indicating: 

 

31 March Royal Albert Hall Concert  

1 April (Easter Sunday) St Clement Danes Founders’ Day Service 

1-2 April RAF Museum Cosford Events 

18 – 20 April Guildhall events 

10 June Cosford Air Show 

10 July Service, Parade, Flypast, Consecration of new Colour 

11-12 July Air Power Conference 

11-15 July RIAT 

16 September Battle of Britain Service  

 

City and Countywide Events  

 

Dates Event Venue Status 

Saturday 30 September 

2017 – 

25 March 2018 

Airships over Lincolnshire - An exhibition exploring the 

vital role airships and hot air balloons have played and 

the involvement of the Lighter than Air Section at 

Cranwelll. 

 

Cranwell Aviation 

Heritage Museum 

Confirmed 

Sunday 1 April – Sunday 

30 September 

Gallantry in the Air -  An exhibition commemorating 

the RAF air crews who have been decorated for their 

bravery 

 

Cranwell Aviation 

Heritage Museum 

Confirmed 

Sunday 1 April 100
th

 Anniversary of RAF Open Cockpits Day 

celebrating 100 years of the RAF with access to a host of 

museum aircraft. 

 

Newark Air Museum Confirmed 

Thursday 5 April – 

Friday 31 August 

Bastion in the Air Exhibition.  The Dambusters Hanger 

will be re-created into a WWI Airfield with three WWI 

aircrafts flying in to form part of a static display.   

 

RAF Scampton Confirmed 

Thursday 12 April Official opening of International Bomber Command 

Centre with Public evening concert. 

 

IBCC, Canwick Hill Confirmed 

Friday 20 April RAF Freedom Parade  

 

Lincoln city centre   Confirmed 

Page - 15



________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
    

  19/12/2017  | Page 2  

Saturday 5, Sunday 6 & 

Monday 7 May 

 

Kings in the Sky – 100 Years of Military Flying 

 

Lincoln Castle Confirmed 

Sunday 6 May Polish Heritage Day  RAF Ingham Heritage 

Centre 

 

Confirmed 

 

Friday 11 May Black tie Gala screening of The Dam Busters 

 

Kinema in the Woods Confirmed 

Sunday 13 May RAF Band Garden Concert with Spitfire Flypast Petwood Hotel 

 

Confirmed 

Saturday 19 May – 

Sunday 3 June 

 

Lincolnshire Wolds Walking Festival with aviation 

themed walks 

The Wolds Confirmed 

 

Thursday 24 May RAF Centenary Concert with the Band of the Royal Air 

Force  College compered by Carol Vorderman MBE 

RAFVR(T) 

 

Lincoln Cathedral Confirmed 

May West Lindsay Churches Festival – aviation themed 

 

 TBC 

Thursday 10 May –  

Sunday 13 May 

 

Cycle Grand Prix – with one race featuring 100 RAF 

cyclists   

Lincoln City Centre Confirmed 

Wednesday 20 and 

Thursday 21 June 

Lincolnshire Show  Lincolnshire 

Showground 

 

Confirmed 

Saturday 26 May – 

Sunday 9 September 

Bastion in the Air Exhibition - Worldwide artefacts with 

be displayed telling the story of Lincoln’s part in WWI 

including the largest model Zeppelin 

 

The Collection Confirmed 

Saturday 30 June Armed Forces Day Lincoln City Centre Confirmed 

 

Saturday 30 June – 

Friday 13 July 

Heroes of the Airfields Exhibition St Marks Shopping 

Centre 

 

Confirmed 

Saturday 7 – Sunday 8 

July 

Woodhall Spa 1940’s Festival Woodhall Spa Confirmed 

13 July – 12 August Heroines of the Home Front St Marks Shopping 

Centre 

Confirmed 

25 – 29 July Lincolnshire International Chamber Music Festival 

with music from the First and Second World War 

Lincoln Drill Hall and 

other venues 

 

 

Confirmed 

 

Page - 16



________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
    

  19/12/2017  | Page 3  

Saturday 29 July Harlaxton Manor Open Day with old aircrafts, 

exhibitions, vintage singers and a remembrance service 

 

Harlaxton Manor Confirmed 

Saturday 4 August East Kirby Air Show Lincolnshire Aviation 

Heritage Centre 

 

Confirmed 

 

Friday 10 August RAF100 Dinner Lincoln Cathedral 

 

Confirmed 

Saturday 11 August 1940s Themed Dinner DoubleTree by Hilton 

 

Confirmed 

Saturday 11 August Proms Concert Lincoln Castle Confirmed 

 

Saturday 11 and Sunday 

12 August 

RAF100 Weekend incorporating the annual 1940s 

weekend, static displays, ‘Brew for the Few’ and lots lots 

more. 

 

Citywide Confirmed 

Saturday 29 September 

to Sunday 28 October 

 

South Lincolnshire Walking Festival Various Confirmed 

Sunday 30 September Outdoor Cinema showing The Dam Busters Lincoln Castle Confirmed 

 

September Gravity Fields Event with an aviation slant Grantham TBC 

 

Thursday 18 October Commemoration of Lincoln Engineering in the Great 

War with an introduction on the overall picture of the 

supply of munitions and aircraft manufacture. 

 

Lincoln Drill Hall Confirmed 

Friday 2 November RAF Swing Wing   Lincoln Drill Hall TBC  

 

Saturday 3 November Benjamin Britten:  War Requiem led by the Lincoln 

Choral Society with the Lincoln Cathedral Choristers 

 

Lincoln Cathedral Confirmed 

Saturday 10 November 100
th

 Anniversary of Armistice with march of all 

services and the salute taken by the Lord Mayor of 

Lincoln 

 

War Memorial, 

Lincoln City Centre 

Confirmed 

 

Sunday 11 November Remembrance Service  

 

Lincoln Cathedral Confirmed 

Sunday 11 November Beacon Lighting Lincoln Castle Confirmed 

 

Sunday 11 to Saturday 

17 November 

Lincoln Mystery Plays presents The Eleventh Hour Lincoln Drill Hall Confirmed 

Page - 17



________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
    

  19/12/2017  | Page 4  

 

Page - 18



Culture and Tourism Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2017/18 – DRAFT  Work Programme
Current issues/status Activity Date Outcome sought

Development of 
Cultural Strategy

 Our Strategy is currently 
embedded within a general 
county wide document as 
we focus on this area more 
as we move forward we will 
need to develop our own 
SKDC specific strategy.

The Cultural strategy 
will be an overarching 
document which will 
include:-

 Arts
 Leisure
 Culture / 

Heritage
 Markets
 Parks

Sub strategies 
designed to deliver the 
overarching ambitions 
will be developed for 
each of these 
connected areas. 

Workshops on 
development of 
Cultural Strategy held 
on 14.09.17 and 
17.10.17

Community 
Engagement 

6 months to 
prepare?

Early 2018?

Findings  to 
meeting on
16.11.17

tbc

 Comprehensive Cultural programme 
which adds to the environment of SK 
and adds to the quality of life of its 
residents.

 Effectively funded and fit for purpose 
programme of activity 

P
age - 19

A
genda Item

 10



Visitor Economy  No current direct service 
provision in this area, 
relative small budget 
allocations. Work through 
comms on web 
development

 SKDC specific  strategy 
required 

Analysis of current 
activity across the 
district

Understanding the 
Council’s potential role

Assess current work in 
this area – EG aviation 
heritage

Report to Committee

16.11.17 

 Appropriate positioning of the Visitor 
Economy within our revised ED 
strategy/Action Plan

Festivals  Existing legacy programme 
of bi annual events in 
Grantham and Stamford.

 Recently helped fund and 
deliver literacy festival in the 
Deepings

 Georgian festival planned in 
Sept for Stamford

 Initial work underway for 
Gravity 2018

 Review of the 
Deepings – Speaker 
Judy Stevens

 Future programme 
determination 6 months?

 Increased understanding of the 
implications/issues emerging from 
this first Deeping Literary Festival.

 To develop a greater understanding 
of how our festivals can contribute to 
the enhancement of the SK ‘offer’ and 
the quality of life for our residents.

Arts and Leisure  Currently operating 2 Arts 
Centres and 4 Sports 
Centres across the district.

 The chance to share 
agreement at the Deepings 
is under review. Future 
investment in the premises 
will depend on the outcome.

 Funding drawn down from 
Arts Council for arts offer, 
however arts provision is a 
significant cost to the GF.

 Stamford AC leased, long 
term, from Burghley estates.

 Zero management fee as 

 Baselining position 
for Sports and 
Leisure provision 
across the district 

 Understanding of 1 
LIFES currently 
delivery model and 
outcomes and 
outputs that delivers

 Future direction of 
the services 
following detailed 
option analysis

 Strategy 
Development for 

Soon

Soon

6 months?

9 months?

 To increase understanding of the 
current levels of leisure/arts provision 
across the district.

To anticipate and inform consideration 
of proposals for future provision of 
leisure and arts across the district.P

age - 20



part of contractual 
arrangements for Sports 
Centres. Current contract 
ends Jan 2020. 

each area following 
agreement of 
outcomes sought.

 Potential guest 
speakers from 
Sports England and 
Arts council

tbc

Markets
(Grantham 
Market)

 SK currently operating three 
markets across the district.

 Grantham market in decline, 
Stamford prosperous

 Markets charter cost 
reduction agreed with 
Buckminster estates 

 Grantham market relocated 
recently following 
consultation.

  Research into successful 
markets provision 
elsewhere in the Country 
undertaken.

 Site visits undertaken by 
cabinet member

 Base Position 
analysis required

 Opportunities/Optio
ns for future 
provision

 Other Markets – 
best practice 
assessment 

 Visiting reports
 Strategy 

development

Soon?

6 months?

 To understand the current operators 
of markets across the district. 

To inform and appropriately influence 
the future operations of our markets 
across the district.

Guest speaker: 
Janet Goodwin from Market 
Strategies
 

 An overview of her 
role was provided 
and she referred to 
how areas had an 
individual 
uniqueness and 
how capturing and 
incorporating this 
would enhance the 
promotion of an 
area.

14.09.17

Parks  HLF supporting refurb of W 
Park > £1m project. 

 W Park has green flag 

 Site visit required to 
W Park

 Strategy for future 

Sept?  Increased understanding of role of 
Parks in the wellbeing of our 
communities.

P
age - 21



status
 Parks tend to be funded by 

SEA’s
 Stamford parks transferred 

to STC

park development 
post HLF project 
required.

 Value of Heritage
 HLF Bids

Later?
 To consider future opportunities to 

engage with the HLF.
Other  Street Signage 

 Civic society – value of 
heritage 

 Ownership of 
signage issues

 Local policy?

tbc  To consider how enhanced signage 
can support our local visitor 
experience.

P
age - 22


	Agenda
	5 Action Notes from the meeting held on 16 November 2017
	9 RAF 100 Commemoration Programme
	RAF Events 2018 december

	10 Work Programme

